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IMPORTANT NOTICE

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”)
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a high investment risk may bhe attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record
of profitahility nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature
of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries
in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may he more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will he a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is
publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock Exchange.
Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid
announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective
investors should note that they need to have access to GEM website
at www.hkgem.com in order to obtain up-to-date information on
GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility
for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon
the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Tiger Tech Holdings Limited
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to Tiger Tech Holdings Limited. The
directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief: i. the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading; ii. there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement in this report misleading; and iii. all
opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due
and careful consideration and are founded on bases and
assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information
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Financial Highlights
MBRE

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2007 30 June 2006
BE-STLF HE-TTAF
ARA=ZTHLEEE RNA=1THLEHFE

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT T
Turnover EER 16,101 8,037
Loss for the year and attributable to IREREE AREA
equity holders B EE (2,995) (2,482)
Loss per share FREE
— Basic (HK cents) — EARGBA) (0.64) (0.53)
— Diluted — s N/A TEA N/A 738 A
Turnover by Business Segment: BEBOEE D 2 EXEE
— Enterprise Thin Client Solutions — PEERPEERTR 3,350 6,840
— Cable Network Thin Client Solutions — BEREKE T #IRRTE - 1,197
— Customised Thin Client — FRERFHERELN
Application Solutions IR R 1,600 =
— Trading of Computer Parts — BEEHES 11,151 =
16,101 8,037
Turnover by Geographical Area: L EE D & HERE
— Hong Kong — BF 11,151 1,068
— United Kingdom — HE - 565
— United States — EH - 1,980
— Singapore — Franig - 115
— People’s Republic of China — R ARLRME
(the “PRC") (T EE]) - 3,683
— Macau — BP9 4,950 626
16,101 8,037

EERNE BRARAT —TTLE5% D



Statement From Executive Director

HITESHRES

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Tiger Tech
Holdings Limited, | am pleased to present the annual report of
the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2007.

RESULTS

For the financial year ended 2007, the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) recorded a turnover and
loss attributable to shareholders of approximately HK$16 million
and approximately HK$3.0 million respectively while the Group
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$8.0 million and loss
attributable to shareholders of approximately HK$2.5 million in
the previous financial year.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

During the period under review, the Group has continued to supply
its customers with thin client solutions by offering them a one
stop solution which includes the design of thin client network
architecture, development and provision of operating and
application software and hardware, system integration as well as
consultation services. Although the Group engaged in the research,
development, sales and implementation of Enterprise Thin Client
Solutions, Customised Thin Client Application Solutions and Cable
Network Thin Client Solutions providing first rate services to its
clients, it has faced some challenges during the past year.

Due to fierce competition in the IT industry, the turnover this year
derived from the provision of Enterprise Thin Client Solutions,
Cable Network Thin Client Solutions and Customised Thin Client
Application Solutions for the Group decreased by approximately
HK$3.0 million compared with the previous financial year.

The Group has adopted a number of positive measures to regain
its competitive advantage by diligently exploring new markets,
seeking and expanding its customer base in different countries.
It is actively looking for possible investment opportunities and / or
cooperation with partners in order to expand its income base. At
the beginning of year 2007, the Group has also started trading
business with computer parts to further enlarge its income base.
The amount of progress the Group has made at this stage however,
has not yet met expectations.
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Statement From Executive Director

In order to have more flexibility financially and to be able to respond
quickly to possible investment opportunities, on 14 June 2007,
the Company entered into a placing agreement with respect to
the issue of 93,000,000 unlisted Warrants to raise approximately
HK$7.191 million for the general working capital of the Company.
The issuing of 93,000,000 unlisted Warrants were fully exercised
for the period 12 July 2007 to 16 July 2007 and HK$66.96 million
was raised. The Group is now in a position to improve its existing
products so that they become more value-adding as well as being
able to capture investment opportunities which may arise at any
time and require prompt investment decision by the Group. It is
expected that a number of promising businesses may be
introduced in the near future. The Board believes that the coming
year will be full of competitive challenges as well as opportunities
for the Group.

CHANGE OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

We would like to mention that the controlling shareholder of the
Company changed during the year. On 1 March 2007, Orient State
Limited (“Orient State”, which is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Lam Shu Chung, an executive director of the Company
who was appointed on 1 June 2007) being the Purchaser, entered
into the Sale and Purchase of the Sale Shares Agreement (“S&P
Agreement”) with Precision Assets Limited (“Precision”) and
Timepiece Associates Limited (“Timepiece”), being the Vendors
(both of which are wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tony
Hoo, an Executive Director of the Company who resigned on 5
June 2007), pursuant to which the Purchaser conditionally agreed
to purchase and the Vendors conditionally agreed to sell an
aggregate of 143,000,000 shares (43,000,000 shares from
Precision and 100,000,000 shares from Timepiece ) at a total
consideration of HK$3,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$0.0266 per share).

Upon the above transaction, Orient State was interested in 30.75%
of the issue share capital of 465,000,000 shares of the Company
as at 30 June 2007.
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Statement From Executive Director

HITESHRES

APPRECIATON

Finally, On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express our heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, customers,
business associates and dedicated staff for their continuous

support to the Group.

Lam Shu Chung
Executive Director

27 September 2007
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

This year, the Group recorded a consolidated turnover of
approximately HK$16 million, representing an increase of

approximately HK$8 million as compared with the previous year.
Comments on segmental information
(i)  Enterprise Thin Client Solutions

The income derived from the provision of enterprise thin
client solutions decreased from approximately HK$6.84
million for the financial year of 2006 to approximately
HK$3.35 million for the financial year of 2007. All this was
secured in Macau.

(ii) Cable Network Thin Client Solutions

The Group recorded no income for the provision of cable
network thin client solutions this financial year, while the
turnover recorded last financial year was approximately
HK$1.2 million.

(iii) Customised Thin Client Application Solutions
The income derived from the provision of customised thin
client application solutions was HK$1.6 million this year,
and the Group recorded no income in the preceding financial
year. All this was secured in Macau.

(iv) Trading
Turnover from trading computer parts for the year ended
30 June 2007 was approximately HK$11.1 million all of
which was secured in Hong Kong.

Change in Inventories

Changes in inventories represented the changes in closing
balances of merchandise between two fiscal years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmE DM

Purchase of Merchandise

Purchase of goods increased from approximately HK$4.3 million
last financial year to approximately HK$11.6 million this financial
year which was in line with the increase in turnover.

Employee Benefits Expense

Employee benefits expense for the year under review was
approximately HK$0.38 million, while the amount was
approximately HK$1.2 million the previous year, a decrease of
68%. The decrease in employee benefits expense was mainly
attributable to payment waiving in remuneration to directors. This
was due to the financial difficulty the company faced during the
first half of this financial year.

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation charge decreased by 14% from HK$14,000 in the
financial year of 2006 to HK$12,000 in the financial year of 2007.
However, the amount of depreciation which is insignificant was
mainly due to full depreciation being made against some of the
assets and disposal of property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the past two financial years. Hence, no further depreciation
charge was provided for this financial year. Amortisation decreased
by 25% from HK$1,525,000 in the financial year 2006 to
HK$1,144,000 in the financial year 2007 because the intangible
asset was fully amortised after nine months’ amortisation charge
this year in contrast to a full year’'s amortisation charge last year.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses were increased by 48% from HK$4.8
million in the financial year of 2006 to HK$7.1 million in the
financial year of 2007. During the year under review, the Group
has made an effort to save cost such as reducing its office rental.
The Directors of the Company have waived their directors’ fees in
order to meet company objectives. However, there has been an
increase in the provision for doubtful debts, an increase in some
other operating expenses such as traveling and project
development expenses which occurred from the exploration of
new markets for the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Overall, the Group’s turnover increased, but the loss attributable
to shareholders of the Company was increased from HK$2.5
million last financial year to HK$3.0 million this financial year
due to fierce competition in the IT arena in 2007.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group primarily relies on the internal resources and net
proceeds from the placing of the Company’s shares as sources of
funding for its operations. As at 30 June 2007, the Group’s cash
and bank balances were approximately HK$0.8 million (2006:
HK$2.5 million). The Group had no credit facilities and had no
bank borrowing as at 30 June 2007. The net current assets of the
Group were approximately HK$1.5 million (2006: HK$4.8 million).
The Directors consider that the Group has sufficient financial
resources to meet its liabilities and commitments.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2007, the Company’s outstanding issued shares
were 465,000,000. There has not been any change to the capital
structure of the Company during the reporting period.

GEARING RATIO

As at 30 June 2007, the gearing ratio of the Group based on total
liabilities over total assets was 0.50 (2006: 0.06)

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 30 June 2007, the majority of the Group’s
income and expenses were denominated in Hong Kong dollars
with part of their expenses denominated in Renminbi, while an
insignificant portion of expenses were denominated in the United
States dollars. Up to 30 June 2007, the management of the
Company is of the opinion that the Group has insignificant
exposure to foreign exchange risk. As a result, the Group did not
use any financial instruments for hedging against fluctuation in
foreign exchange for the year ended 30 June 2007. Nevertheless,
the management of the Company will closely monitor and from
time to time reassess the exchange risk exposures of the Group
and enter into non-speculative hedging arrangements if considered

necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmE DM

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 June 2007, none of the Group’s assets were pledged to
secure any bank facilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2007, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENT

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had any significant

acquisitions, disposals and investment during the year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR INVESEMENT OR CAPITAL
ASSETS AND SOURCES OF FUNDING

On 14 June 2007, the Company entered into a placing agreement
in respect of the issue of 93,000,000 unlisted Warrants to raise
approximately HK$7.191 million for general working capital of the
Company. The issue of 93,000,000 unlisted Warrants were fully
exercised and HK$66.96 million was raised.

As at 30 June 2007, the group had no future plans for material

investment or capital assets.
EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2007, the Group had 8 employees in Hong Kong.
(2006: 9). The total employees’ remuneration, including that of
the Directors, amounted to approximately HK$0.38 million (2006:
HK$1.2 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group continues to provide remuneration packages to
employees according to market practices, their experience and
performance. Remuneration policy is basically determined with
reference to individual performance as well as the financial results
of the Group which will be revised from time to time when
performances of staff are warranted. Other benefits include
contribution of statutory mandatory provident fund for the
employees. There has been no major change in staff remuneration

policies during the year.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
30 June 2007.

BEEENWmE DM

AEBEREZTHED RELKBREIRREETRE
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Corporate Governance Report
TEEBRRSE

The Group acknowledges the importance of corporate governance
as a key to the value of the Group. The Group is also committed
to a high standard of corporate governance that can properly
protect and promote the interest of the shareholders and enhance
the value of the corporation.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize
a quality board, sound internal controls, transparency and
accountability to all shareholders. Throughout the financial year
ended 30 June 2007, the Group has applied the principles set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“HKSE Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”) except the code
provisions A2.1 and A4.1 stipulated in the following paragraphs.

The code provision A2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The role of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company has segregated on or before 5 June 2007. However,
Mr. Lee Hai Chu and Mr. Tony Hoo resigned as Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 24 July 2007 and 5
June 2007 respectively. The Board is in the process of identifying
suitable candidates to fill in the vacancies for Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer in compliance with the requirement of HKSE
Code. Further announcement will be made by the Company with
regard to the new appointment of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in due course.

The code provision A4.1 stipulates that Independent Non-
Executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election.

AEERREREANERN - EANEEAIEE
BE2BE% - ARENRBORBREZLEESE -
NZZEREBLRFABRREZARIRGEEEE -

TEERER

ARRZEEERRUZESEZNESE 22
MINEREETE - URHBERMERELBEN - BE
“ETEFRNA=ZTHEREMRFEAR - AEE
BEETEHNREBMARIMARQFRIERES L
mARR ([RIZR EWARRD M+ A2 BRERS
Msr A (TEBMAFTT A B8z RA - AT
B RE 2 5T BIMESCA2. 1 K A4 LRR O ©

SPRMESCA IMTE - £/ BTBAREL ([TTHARE])
ZBEREOH - TEAR— AEE - THETHRE
BEZBES D EARGELAEEL AR -

R-ZZLFXNARALZH - ARBIEEEMD
fREFEMITHRERNTRBE - A - FEERE
MRRAED N -_ZTTLFLA-THBER-
ZZHFRNARABREARARB 2 TR RITHRAE
BREBBMIMATAZRE  EFSSLAEVEEE
NE DB EE RITRAR Z iR - RARERE
ERRARERNRB 2N ERERITRAR B HE—
/NG

STRMESCAA LRE - B FFRTEEREGEEED
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The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election pursuant to the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”). The Company considers that sufficient
measures will be in place to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than the HKSE Code.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealing as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 30 June 2007.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors of the Company, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors of the Company.

Board of Directors
The Board comprises six Executive Directors, one Non-Executive
Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors as follows

on this reporting date:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Shu Chung

Mr. Law Fei Shing

Mr. Yau Hoi Kin

Mr. Kwong Wai Ho Richard
Ms. Yu Sau Lai

Ms. Yeung Sau Han Agnes

Non-Executive Director:

Mr. Cheung Siu Chung Cheever

(appointed on 1 June 2007)
(appointed on 1 June 2007)
(appointed on 11 July 2007)
(appointed on 11 July 2007)
(appointed on 11 July 2007)
(appointed on 11 July 2007)

(appointed on 11 July 2007)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Lum Pak Sum
Mr. Lam Nai Hung
Mr. Kwok Chung Yin

(appointed on 1 June 2007)

(appointed on 1 June 2007)

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report

TERER®E

Each Director has relevant experience, competence and skills
appropriate to the business requirements of the Company. The
biographical details of the Directors are set out in the Report of the ZIVB) RAFRIEZRSREEE]—&

Directors (on pages 27 to 37) and the section headed “Directors 26B) °
and Senior Management” (on pages 23 to 26) of the Annual Report.

Regular Board meetings are held normally every three months, FiN/N
with additional meetings arranged if and when required. During %EHU THHMEH - HEZZT
the year ended 30 June 2007, the Board held 18 physical

BEES=EAERET

meetings. The attendance record of each member of the Board is ZHBREIAT

set out below:

HIEFER  EFEH1TT18RIEN

BREFHAAEAARAEBERZAERER -
EOEEN EZ2BEEABEENESS

s (27
(%23%

—REZEE WA
TERNA=T
g% FES

Name of Director Attendance
EEER HEIRE
Executive Directors:
HITEE :
Mr. Lam Shu Chung (appointed on 1 June 2007) 4/4
NEIR A e (R=ZZET+LFA—BHEZMF)
Mr. Law Fei Shing (appointed on 1 June 2007) 4/4
VR (RZZEZEFA—BHEZMF)
Mr. Yau Hoi Kin (appointed on 11 July 2007) 0/0
Vi3 it (RZZEZLFLA+—RHEZMT)
Mr. Kwong Wai Ho Richard (appointed on 11 July 2007) 0/0
BMEZ A& (RZZEZLFELAT—REZE)
Ms. Yu Sau Lai (appointed on 11 July 2007) 0/0
REBLT (RZZEZLFEAT—REZE)
Ms. Yeung Sau Han Agnes (appointed on 11 July 2007) 0/0
AL L (R=ZZEZLFLA+—HEZMT)
Mr. Lee Hai Chu (Chairman, resigned on 24 July 2007) 0/18
FEELEE (FfE RZZEZLF LA THABMT)
Mr.Tony Hoo (Chief Executive Directors,

resigned on 5 June 2007) 15/15
AR ((THREBEHR _ZEZTLF A RABEE)
Mr. Too Shu Wing (resigned on 5 June 2007) 15/15
FEf Rk (RZZEZEFARAHEFHD
Dr. Frederick William De Jacma Jr. (resigned on 5 December 2006) 0/3
Frederick William De Jacma Jr.28 (RZETRF+TAAAFEM
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (resigned on 5 June 2007) 9/9
BEESLE (RZZEZLF AN BET
Mr. Yim Kai Pung (resigned on 5 June 2007 5/9
BR AL G o5 A (RZZEZ+F AR BET)
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CEEARE
Name of Director Attendance
EEER HEIRE
Non-Executive Director:

FHHITEE :

Mr. Cheung Siu Chung Cheever (appointed on 11 July 2007) 0/0
SRR A (RZZEZ+LF+LAT+—RHEZE)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

BUHFBITESE

Mr. Lum Pak Sum (appointed on 1 June 2007) 2/4
MAEER ST (RZZEZT+FA—BEZE)

Mr. Lam Nai Hung 9/18
Ty e

Mr. Kwok Chung Yin (appointed on 1 June 2007) 2/4
BMERE (RZZEZE+F A —BEZE)

Dr. Pai Wai Martin (resigned on 5 June 2007) 3/
BB E (RZZEZ+FADBET)

Mr. Yu Kam Sing Raymond (resigned on 5 June 2007) 5/15
RIBBE LA (R—ZEZLFNARBEMD

Directors are free to contribute alternative views at meetings and
major decisions are only adopted after deliberation at Board
meetings. Directors who are considered having conflicts of interest
or who have material interest in the proposed transactions or issues
to be discussed will not be counted in the quorum of meetings
and will abstain from voting on relevant resolutions.

Minutes of the Board / Committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection by the Directors.
All Directors have access to the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
with, and advising the Board on compliance matters.

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Company in accordance with the Articles and is entitled to delegate
its powers to any Executive Director, Committees of the Board
and the Management Team. The Board is primarily responsible
for approving and monitoring the Company’s major corporate
matters, the evaluation of the performance of the Company and
oversight of the management. The Board is directly accountable

to the shareholders and is responsible for preparing the accounts.

§$Hﬁ5’\‘®iﬂﬁai C MAERERXRKSALE
EZREINRTRE BEMNEEHERRZFER
?—irETuma$Iﬁ>ﬁf&%lJﬁ?§T§§ifﬁﬁéﬁi*Uﬁ - B E
FARRBRZEEANBA - TAERBERESR

%R e
E5EQ REQVERLBHRRANERT  BF

MRS - 2REFHIEELPME - AFW
EREHRETSREFSGUNET  IRTHREER
ExgeRfER -

RIFMAA EFESATARFRZBEERE  UHE
Tﬁﬂéﬁﬁ TEMRTEE EFSZEINER
CEZRTIEREEUNEREARRZEALE
%%% CAHEARRARRAREEEEE EFEHE
HEREENMBAERAKM -

ZRME (ZER) BRAR —ETLFERH
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Corporate Governance Report
TEEBRRSE

To the knowledge of the Directors, the Board members have no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships

with each other.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The code provision A2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The role of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company has segregated on or before 5 June 2007. However,
Mr. Lee Hai Chu and Mr. Tony Hoo resigned as Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 24 July 2007 and 5
June 2007 respectively. The Board is in the process of identifying
suitable candidates to fill in the vacancies for Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer in compliance with the requirement of HKSE
Code. Further announcement will be made by the Company with
regard to the new appointment of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in due course.

Non-Executive Directors

Except for the appointment of Mr. Cheung Siu Chung Cheever
who was appointed as Non-Executive Director for a term of one
year which will continue thereafter until being terminated by either
party giving not less than three-month prior notice, none of the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company are appointed for specific
terms but are subject to the retirement by rotation provisions under
the Articles. The Company considers that sufficient measures will
be in place to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than the HKSE Code.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers

them to be independent.

EFEMA > EFEK BRI 2 I EETAM
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R-ZFZTLFXNARALZH - ARBIEEENMD
fREFEMITHRAERNTRBE - A - FEERE
MRRAED N -_ZTTLFLA-THBER=
ZZHFRNARBBREARARB 2 TR RITHRAE
EREBBIMTAZAE  EFQLAEVEEE
NE DB EE RITRAR 2 ZR - NARERE
ERRARERNRB 2N ERERITRARZHE—
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BRI AR —FHR GRIFHEM— T BB TDR
—EAZRIBEN  ZEHERREEBELY R
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Audit Committee

The Board established an audit committee with written terms of
reference in accordance with Rules 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The audit committee comprises three members who are
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lum Pak Sum,
Mr. Lam Nai Hung and Mr. Kwok Chung Yin (with Mr. Lum Pak
Sum, as the Chairman thereof).

The principal duties of the audit committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
procedures of the Company, and to review the appointment of
external auditors on an annual basis as well as to ensure
independence of the continuing auditor.

Corporate Governance Report

TRER/RS

EREEE

%%AEEFEH%T&LWU%%E'J%S 28{R L B R
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The audit committee met six times during the year ended 30 June HE_ZZLFNA=-ZTHLTFE BZZESHR
2007 and the attendance of the members is as follows: TTRREE  SKBZHBREWOT :

Name of Member Attendance
RE®E HERE
Mr. Lum Pak Sum (appointed on 1 June 2007) 1/1
AR E (RZZEZEF A —HEZME)

Mr. Lam Nai Hung 5/6
MRTDIE S A

Mr. Kwok Chung Yin (appointed on 1 June 2007) 1/1
B L E (RZZEZ+F A —BHEZT)

Mr. Yu Kam Sing Raymond (re5|gned on 5 June 2007) 5/
RIBBE LA (RZEZEFXARBEIT)

Dr. Pak Wai Martin (resigned on 5 June 2007) 2/9
HE 2 (R-_ZEZLFNARBEMD

During the year ended 30 June 2007, the audit committee HE_ZZLHFNA=ZTHLFERN  BRZELEE
discharged its duties by reviewing the financial matters, quarterly, BERTERE  REFHARAZYBEE - F

interim and annual financial reports, and financial statements as
well as audit matters of the Company. They discussed the above
with the executive directors, management and the auditors of the

Company, and made recommendations to the Board.

The audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2007
have been reviewed by the audit committee.

€ PHIREFHMBRERPBERE - UAREEE
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TERER®E

Remuneration Committee

The Company has set up a remuneration committee since 12 April
2005. The existing committee is made up of the Company’s three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lum Pak Sum,
Mr. Lam Nai Hung and Mr. Kwok Chung Yin (with Mr. Lum Pak

Sum, as the Chairman thereof).

The principal responsibilities of the remuneration committee
include the formulation of the Company’s remuneration policy,
the approval or recommendation of remuneration packages for
the Directors and the senior management, and the review and
approval of performance based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives. According to the terms of

reference, the remuneration committee should meet twice a year.

=
=

FMZE

A0

ARBE-ZTRAFOAT-_AXRIFMEES -
BRITEEQAARA =B IFNITEEEMN - B
MARFRT A ~ MTDHESRAE RERE AL - Ep i
BRAELEZIRFMEEELRE -

FHZE 2T EREBREIEANRBFHMBOR -
HWESEREERRRAEERE 2 @HﬁL A R f
BEXBERRREBHAMAL/ERRIBAGD 7 FHH
REBERE FHZESRSFETMAGE -

In 2007, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings. The RZETLF  FTHZESRITMASR LES
attendance record of each member of the Committee is set out ERBEZHFE pEf?ZZDT

below:

Name of Member Attendance
REHKA HEIRE
Mr. Lum Pak Sum (appointed on 1 June 2007) 0/0
MRARAR 5T & (R=ZZET+FA—BHEZMF)

Mr. Lam Nai Hung 2/2
Ty e

Mr. Kwok Chung Yin (appointed on 1 June 2007) 0/0
LB L E (RZEZEF A —BHEZMT)

Mr. Yu Kam Sing Raymond (resigned on 5 June 2007) 2/2
RERRS ST (R=ZEZTLFARBEET

Dr. Pak Wai Martin (resigned on 5 June 2007) 0/2
HEE (RZZEZEFNARBEET

At the meeting, members of the remuneration committee reviewed Snmlt BREREAEEERREASETALE

the remuneration packages and overall benefits of the Directors
by taking into account factors such as the business objectives of
the Group and the respective contribution of each of the Directors
to the Group.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has set up a nomination committee since 12 April
2005. The existing committee is made up of the Company’s three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lum Pak Sum,
Mr. Lam Nai Hung and Mr. Kwok Chung Yin (with Mr. Lum Pak

Sum, as the Chairman thereof).

The principal responsibilities of the nomination committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board; to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorship; and to make recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors.
According to the terms of reference, the nomination committee
should meet twice a year

In 2007, the Nomination Committee held two meetings. The
attendance record of each member of the Committee is set out below:

Corporate Governance Report
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Name of Member Attendance
REHE HE R B
Mr. Lum Pak Sum (appointed on 1 June 2007) 0/0
AR E (RZZEZLFRA—HEZME)

Mr. Lam Nai Hung 2/2
MRTD S A

Mr. Kwok Chung Yin (appointed on 1 June 2007) 0/0
P E & (R=ZZET+FA—BEZE)

Mr. Yu Kam Sing Raymond (resigned on 5 June 2007) 2/2
RERRS ST (RZZEZLFRNARHEET

Dr. Pak Wai Martin (resigned on 5 June 2007) 2/2
EEIX% (EA77 7‘t¢/\ﬂﬁaﬁ¥fr[)

The Board has the power to appoint Director(s) pursuant to the
Articles. During the year ended 30 June 2007, the Board
appointed four Executive Directors and two Independent Non-
Executive Directors.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The remuneration of the auditors for the provision of audit services
for the last year was HK$280,000, and the remuneration of the
auditors for the provision of audit services during the year under
review was HK$200,000.

Preparation of Financial Statements

The respective responsibilities of the Directors and the auditors
for preparing financial statements of the Company are set out in
the “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 38 to 40 of the

Annual Report.
Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board is committed to implementing an effective and sound
internal control system to safeguard the interests of shareholders

and the Company’s assets.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Shu Chung (“Mr. Lam”), aged 51, joined the Company as
the Executive Director and Authorized Representative in June
2007. Mr. Lam has around 20 years of experience in the Hong
Kong financial market, ranging from the field of securities, foreign
exchange to corporate banking. Furthermore, he has been actively
participating in the management of a number of reputable financial
institutions for over 10 years. Mr. Lam is currently also the
chairman and executive director of Sunny Global Holdings Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Lam
is currently the sole director and shareholder of Orient State
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, which holds
143,000,000 shares of the Company (representing approximately
25.63% of the existing entire issued share capital of the Company
up to the date of this report).

Mr. Law Fei Shing (“Mr. Law”), aged 47, joined the Company as
the Executive Director, Company Secretary, Authorised
Representative and Compliance Officer in June 2007. Mr. Law is
a Certified Public Accountant practicing in Hong Kong. He is also
a member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(AICPA), USA and associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA). Mr. Law has over 17
years of experience in the audit and accounting services. He has
extensive experience in auditing and accounting fields. Mr. Law
is currently also an executive director of Aurora Global Investment
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yau Hoi Kin (“Mr. Yau”), aged 40, joined the Company as the
Executive Director in July 2007. Mr. Yau received the post-graduate
Certificate in Business Administration from the Hong Kong Open
University. He has a wealth of practical experience and an
extensive and in-depth knowledge of Chinese business practices,
and of its legal and regulatory frameworks. For the past two years
he has been a financial consultant to Lanwa International (Group)
Co. Ltd., a mid-sized Chinese property developer. Mr. Yau had
previously held senior positions in the corporate finance
department of international housing and spearheaded the listing
of various State and privately-owned companies. Before that, he
was an executive with the investment window company of the
Guangzhou City Municipal Government for 7 years.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERENEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continuea)

Mr. Kwong Wai Ho Richard (“Mr. Kwong”), aged 44, joined the
Company as the Executive Director in July 2007. Mr. Kwong is a
seasoned finance professional with over 18 years of experience
in the banking and finance industry. For the past two years, he
was a financial consultant to Lanwa International (Group) Co. Ltd.,
a mid-sized Chinese property developer. Before that, he worked
with Societe Generale Asia Limited for 9 years where he held the
position of director of financial engineering. In that capacity, he
served as financial advisor to a number of listed companies whose
principal businesses cover a wide range of industries. He has
also researched and developed a variety of tax driven structured
products which create value-added benefits by arbitrating areas
in existing tax, accounting and regulatory frameworks. In addition,
Mr. Kwong has a wealth of experience in Asian debt capital
markets.

Ms. Yu Sau Lai (“Ms. Yu"”), aged 45, joined the Company as
Executive Director in July 2007. Ms. Yu is currently the director
and controlling shareholder of Samwo Company which is engaged
in interior design business. She has 25 years experience in
administration of different kinds of companies and also has
extensive exposure in information technology and business

management in trading, wholesale and retail businesses.

Ms. Yeung Sau Han Agnes (“Ms. Yeung”), aged 41, joined the
Company as Executive Director in July 2007. Ms. Yeung was a
graduate from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) with a higher diploma in fashion
design. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Yeung worked in various
garment companies for over 15 years. Ms. Yeung currently is also
the executive director of PMG Group Limited, a company whose
shares have been listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
and the executive director of BM Intelligence International Limited,
a company whose shares have been listed on the growth enterprise

market of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continuea)

Mr. Lee Hai Chu (“Mr. Lee”), aged 47, joined the Company as the
Executive Director and Chairman of the Group on 31 December
2003 and resigned as Executive Director and Chairman of the
Company on 24 July 2007. Mr. Lee has worked in various
enterprises for over 20 years. He has solid and extensive
experience in the management of Cable TV and Broadcasting
companies and has strong business networking in the Cable TV
and Broadcasting industries.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Cheung Siu Chung Cheever (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 32, joined
the Company as the Non-Executive Director in July 2007. Mr.
Cheung holds a bachelor of law degree (LLB) from University of
London, has a postgraduate certificate in law (PCLL) from
University of Hong Kong and has a master degree of law (Chinese
and Comparative Law) (LLM) from the City University of Hong
Kong. He is a solicitor of The Law Society of Hong Kong and an
affiliate of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(ACCA). Having worked in law firms and professional financial
and accounting firms for more than 7 years, Mr. Cheung possesses
extensive experience in handling financial and accounting matters

and dealing with legal matters.
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Nai Hung (“Mr. Lam”), aged 51, joined the Company as
an Independent Non-Executive Director in January 2006. He
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor degree in Science, majoring in Electronics. Mr. Lam is a
general manager of Ademco Asia Pacific Limited in charge of the
overall operation for distribution of Honeywell electronic security
products in Asia. He has over 20 years of extensive marketing
experience in electronic products.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERENEEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Mr. Lum Pak Sum (“Mr. Lum”), aged 46, joined the Company as an
Independent Non-Executive Director in June 2007. He holds a
master degree in business administration from the University of
Warwick, UK and an LLB (Honor) degree from the University of
Wolverhampton. He is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lum is currently the
independent non-executive director of four other companies, the
shares of all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lum
has over 18 years’ experience in the financial field, the money

market and capital market.

Mr. Kwok Chung Yin (“Mr. Kwok”), aged 56, joined the Company
as an Independent Non-Executive Director in June 2007. He
completed the papers 1, 2, 7 & 8 and 1, 7 & 12 of the Licensing
Examination for Securities and Futures Intermediaries in October
2005 and November 2005 respectively. Mr. Kwok began his
professional career with Banque Nationale de Paris, Hong Kong,
in 1972 and has previously assumed the positions of senior dealer
and senior manager in various financial institutions. He also
previously worked for the Treasury Department of Indover Asia
Limited as manager from 1988 to 2002. Mr. Kwok was an Executive
Director of Artel Solutions Group Holdings Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, for the
period from December 2006 to March 2007. Mr. Kwok has over
18 years’ extensive experience in financial, investment and funding

management.
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Cheung Man Yin (“Ms. Cheung”), aged 38, joined the Company
as the Qualified Accountant in June 2007. Ms. Cheung graduated
from Oxford Brookes University with a BS honours degree in
Applied Accounting. Ms. Cheung is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and prior to joining the Company,
she worked for companies in different fields ranging from Trade
and Manufacture to Wine distribution. Ms. Cheung has over 8
years experience working in an accounting related capacity.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for
the year ended 30 June 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the provision of Enterprise Thin
Client Solutions, Customised Thin Client Application Solution,
Cable Network Thin Client Solutions and trading of computer parts.
Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 17 to the financial statement.

There have been no changes in the nature of the Group’s principal

activities during the year.
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2007 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 41.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial
statement.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital during the year are set out
in note 23 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 44 respectively.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at June 2007, the Company did not have any reserves available
for cash distribution and / or distribution in specie, as computed
in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended). In addition, the Company’s share premium account
with a balance of HK$36,850,000 as at June 2007 may be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Shu Chung (appointed on 1 June 2007)

Mr. Law Fei Shing (appointed on 1 June 2007)

Mr. Yau Hoi Kin (appointed on 11 July 2007)

Mr. Kwong Wai Ho Richard (appointed on 11 July 2007)

Ms. Yu Sau Lai (appointed on 11 July 2007)

Ms. Yeung Sau Han Agnes (appointed on 11 July 2007)

Mr. Lee Hai Chu (Chairman, resigned on 24 July 2007)

Mr. Tony Hoo (Chief Executive Director, resigned on 5 June 2007)

Mr. Too Shu Wing (resigned on 5 June 2007)

Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (appointed on 20 December 2006 and
resigned on 5 June 2007)

Mr. Yim Kai Pung (appointed on 20 December 2006 and
resigned on 5 June 2007)

Dr. Frederick William De Jacma Jr. (resigned on 5 December 2006)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Cheung Siu Chung Cheever (appointed on 11 July 2007)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lum Pak Sum (appointed on 1 June 2007)

Mr. Lam Nai Hung

Mr. Kwok Chung Yin (appointed on 1 June 2007)

Mr. Yu Kam Sing Raymond (resigned on 5 June 2007)
Dr. Pak Wai Martin (resigned on 5 June 2007)
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In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
Mr. Lam Shu Chung and Mr. Law Fei Shing were appointed as
Executive Directors, and Mr. Lum Pak Sum and Mr. Kwok Chung
Yin were appointed as Independent Non-Executive Directors on
1 June 2007. Mr. Yau Hoi Kin, Mr. Kwong Wai Ho Richard, Ms.
Yu Sau Lai and Ms. Yeung Sau Han Agnes were appointed as
Executive Directors, and Mr. Cheung Siu Chung Cheever was
appointed as Non-Executive Director of the Company on 11 July
2007. They will hold office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company following their appointment and being

eligible after themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-Law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, no
Directors will retire and being eligible after themselves for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received written confirmations from all
Independent Non-Executive Directors pursuant to the GEM Listing
Rule 5.09 and therefore considers all Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent.

CHANGE OF AUDITORS

Messer’s Morison Heng was appointed as auditors of the Group
on 26 June 2007 to fill the casual vacancy left by the termination
of K.S. Liu & Company, CPA Limited and to hold office until the

conclusion of the forth coming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the Senior

Management of the Group are set out on pages 23 to 26.
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The appointment of Mr. Lam Shu Chung and Mr. Law Fei Shing
as Executive Directors of the Company with effect from 1 June
2007 until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of
the Company. The Company has entered into service contracts
with them; there is no fixed or proposed length of service with the
company. Mr. Lam and Mr. Law are entitled to an annual
remuneration of HK$360,000 and HK$600,000 which are
determined by the Board with reference to their duties and
responsibilities within the Company. Mr. Lam and Mr. Law are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant to the
bye-laws of the Company and in accordance with the Code of
Corporation Government Practices under the Rules governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (GEM Listing
Rules). The services contract shall continue until terminated by

either party giving not less than three-month prior notice.

The appointment of Mr. Yau Hoi Kin, Mr. Kwong Wai Ho Richard,
Ms. Yu Sau Lai and Ms. Yeung Sau Han Agnes as Executive
Directors of the Company with effect from 11 July 2007. The
Company has entered into service contract with them. Mr. Yau
and Mr. Kwong are each respectively entitled to an annual
remuneration of HK$720,000, and Ms. Yu and Ms. Yeung are
each respectively entitled to an annual remuneration of
HK$240,000 which are determined by the Board with reference
to their duties and responsibilities within the Company. Mr. Yau,
Mr. Kwong, Ms. Yu and Ms. Yeung have been appointed for a
term of one year which will continue thereafter until being
terminated by either party giving not less than three-month prior
notice. Mr. Yau, Mr. Kwong, Ms. Yu and Ms. Yeung will hold office
until the next annual general meeting of the Company and will
retire at that general meeting, but will become eligible for re-
election pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws and in accordance
with the Code of Corporation Government Practices under the
GEM Listing Rules. The services contracts shall continue until
terminated by either party giving not less than three-month prior
notice.
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The appointment of Mr. Cheung Siu Chung Cheever as Non-
Executive Director of the Company with effect from 11 July 2007.
The Company has entered into service contract with him; Mr.
Cheung is entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$96,000 which
is determined by the Board with reference to his duties and
responsibilities within the Company. Mr. Cheung has been
appointed for a term of one year which will continue thereafter
until being terminated by either party giving not less than three-
month prior notice. Mr. Cheung will hold office until the next annual
general meeting of the Company and will retire at that general
meeting, but will become eligible for re-election pursuant to the
Company’s Bye-laws and in accordance with the Code of
Corporation Government Practices under GEM Listing Rules. The
services contract shall continue until terminated by either party

giving not less than three-month prior notice.

The appointment of Mr. Kwok Chung Yin and Mr. Lum Pak Sum
as Independent Non-Executive of the Company with effect from 1
June 2007. The Company has entered into service contract with
them; there is no fixed or proposed length of service with the
Company. Mr. Kwok and Mr. Lum are each respectively entitled
to an annual remuneration of HK$96,000 which is determined by
the Board with reference to their duties and responsibilities within
the Company. Mr. Kwok and Mr. Lum are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company
and in accordance with the Code of Corporation Government
Practices under the GEM Listing Rules. The services contract shall
continue until terminated by either party giving not less than three-

month prior notice.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance (as defined in Rule 18.25 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM Listing Rules to
which the Company or its subsidiaries were a party and in which
a director and substantial shareholder of the Company has a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 24 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2007, the interests of the Directors or Chief
Executives of the Company or each of their respective associates
in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which are required
to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Division 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO and required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by Directors, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as
follows:
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Note:

Orient State Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
is 100% beneficially owned by Mr. Lam Shu Chung (being an Executive
Director)

On 1 March 2007, Orient State Limited, being the Purchaser, entered
into the S&P Agreement with the Vendors Precision Assets Limited and
Timepiece Limited, pursuant to which the Purchaser conditionally agreed
to purchase and the Vendors conditionally agreed to sell an aggregate of
143,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 30.75% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company as at 1 March 2007.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2007, none of the Directors
or Chief Executives or their respective associates had any personal,
family, corporate or other interests or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation as defined in Part XV of the SFO or which,
pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules, are required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ interests in shares or short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above, at no time during the year were given
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them, or was
the Company or any its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors, their spouse or children under 18 of age

to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Report of the Directors

EEERE

5
Orient State Limited (X AR RER 2B &MLz A7)
B AL (BT EE) 100%ERHES ©

WZZTZ+F=H—H  EHOrient State Limited 2 & /7
Precision Assets Limited &2 Timepiece Limited] 32 B & #
FoBY BFEKHERERE  MESEKERELS
4 #£143,000,0000% B8 5 - h AR BN Z_EZE+F= A —
H2ME#ITRAZ430.75% °

B EXWEN R-TTLFA=+TH  HEBE
T CEBETRABRKESA ZBEANKRAL
HAEMENEE (& R EF MR RIIEXVE) Z
TR - R RERETEEEREA - X
Ik ARHEMEERER  HRIFAIER TR
AIZE5. 4618 BAMAR A ME R E -

EERERONEEE 2 EF

B EXEEREBTHABRRD MR 2%
BHRER B TAARES - REARER D EM AT
WEA R RS EMEMEABREZ RO REREE
MZENTFEMNEFARES B ZRBH /RN
TR FERETETALFEN - MAREHK
HAEMMB AR MR ZEMN L  BEES -
BF 2B N\BA T FRAIMEE M EMmEA
Rz LR -

ZRME (ZER) BRAR —ETLFERH

33



Report of the Directors

ESERE

INTEREST OR SHORT POSITION DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SFO AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2007, so far as was known to any Directors’ or
Chief Executives, the following interests of which would fall to be
disclosed under Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company, or which were recorded
in register of interests required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO or have otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company

ﬁ%%#&ﬁﬂ S RBIE T B2
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Name Capacity Number of shares Percentage shareholding
%8 51 g BREBSL
Orient State Limited Beneficial owner 143,000,000 (Note) 30.75%

Note: Orient State Limited is a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability. The entire issued share capital
of each of Orient State Limited is directly wholly owned by Mr.
Lam Shu Chung, who is the sole Director of the company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2007, no person other
than the Directors of the Company and Chief Executive of the
Group, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ interests in shares or short positions in shares
and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the share capital, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Report of the Directors

EEERE

FTERFRHER

Percentage of the Group’s

HREEE A
Turnover Purchases
=] HEgE
The largest customer mRAEF 62% =
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFAR 100% =
The largest supplier AR - 94%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AAREEEAR - 100%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers

respectively.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company
Bye-Laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

MBEERREZEMBEARRESAABEALR
RADBETEAS%IA L Z BRI AEBREAEF &
HERTHEEMNEDES -

BrREERE

BREZARAUTEEHEEBTBEE G R
EARBARLAIARERRIZSHEHMN -

EEHBEOALQT 2 LHESF

RER  ARBHEEARBARMEEZNER
RARMEM EHES -

ZRME (ZER) BRAR —ETLFERH



Report of the Directors

ESERE

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 30 June 2007, the Company had adopted
a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors
on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company had also made specific enquiry with all Directors and
the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the
required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding

securities transactions by Directors.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Group has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.29 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lum Pak Sum, Mr. Lam Nai
Hung, and Mr. Kwok Chung Yin. The duties of the Audit Committee
include reviewing the Group’s annual reports and accounts, half-
year reports and quarterly reports and providing advice and
comments thereon to the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee
is also responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial
reporting process and internal control system of the Group, and
to review the appointment of external auditors on an annual basis
as well as to ensure independence of the continuing auditor.
During the year and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee had held seven meetings to review the 2006 annual
report, the first quarterly report, the interim report, the third
quarterly report and the 2007 annual report, and to discuss the

operation, internal control and resumption proposal of the Group.
COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in
a business, which competes or may compete with the business
of the Group, or has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

2.

ESETESRRZ2BRETA

BE_TZLFERA=ZTHLEE  ARFCHE
FETESFRZFILFRESTR - EEFRTERAIE
R EMRANES ABIGES.67TIRAH 2R H R TR
% ARRINEREBESFHRER  ARAL
BABENEESRETRIRERENERTETE
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BEREES

AEEBBRAIER EMARRIFL.28E5.29(F AL
ARANBREECEZZE® - ERREHMMA
FRITAE - MR ERSBHRE R E =B IFRTT
EEMAK - ERZ B BERRENAKEFR
MRE - FERERFERS - UMHAEESRE
HEZLER BRZEETARRILEELS
B2 MR MBI RS - BRSNS
B2 RE - ARERETREE 2B - R
FARBEARSEH  BERZEGCETLRER
NEHN—ZTXREFR F-FTFTERE - T HR
EB=FFTEREN_ZTTLEFH MBFIAX
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 84.

On behalf of the Board
Lam Shu Chung
Executive Director

Hong Kong
27 September 2007

Report of the Directors
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BB AR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TIGER TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tiger
Tech Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 41 to
83, which comprise the consolidated and the Company balance
sheets as at 30 June 2007, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibhility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

HERBME ERARQT
(RERZETMALZBRAE])
ERR

AZBEEEZZRMZR (ZER)BARAR (TER
A REKBAR (MEATESE]) F41E838 2
HEMBERE  BRNR_-_ZFETLFENA=THZE
FEERBERIMEQFZEERARGBR - REEZA
LHFEZHEABRRR  HEoRaB2HRNEARE
MER  URTESHERRMENHEMBEELEN
e

EENASMBRRAEREZER

BERREZARARBEEBGHMAGRMHZEE
MHRELEARBBRAGO 2 WERERELE
EMAFHIIRZFLRAMBERE - RETEER
it BehkGRERREEEM AT RES M
BHRERBE 2 NEES - NEFEMBRRTEE
HRMFFRERMEBHC EAHRRA - BENE
REE 28R REBAFLEEZ GG
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independent Auditors’ Report
B B RS

BB ED 2 B

Az 2 EERBRBEAZBM 2 EREZERE
MBHHRELER XREBEERE-NAN—FQF
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%o NAERERAMBRERE T FEEAER
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BB AR

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 30 June 2007 and of the loss and cash flows of the
Group for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Morison Heng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong: 27 September 2007
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For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZ+FRNA=THLEE

Consolidated Income Statement

mEERR

2007 2006
—B2LHF —ETREF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FTHET FET
Turnover L 6 16,101 8,037
Other income H g A 7 1,149 1,679
Change in inventories FE#H - (331)
Purchase of merchandise EREE (11,632) (4,285)
Employee benefits expense ETEFER (379) (1,216)
Depreciation and amortisation & K (1,156) (1,539)
Other operating expenses Him&EEH (7,078) (4,827)
Finance costs A& AR - =
Loss hefore taxation BR %% A BT 18 8 (2,995) (2,482)
Taxation Fi 18 9 - -
Loss for the year and attributable to BEFEEARERA
equity holders EiLEE 11 (2,995) (2,482)
LOSS PER SHARE BRESR 12
Basic X (0.64 cents B 1l) (0.53 cents 7l
Diluted s N/A 738 F N/A T8 A

ZRME ER) BRAR —ETLFER



Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

At 30 June 2007

R_ZEZE+FA=1+H
2007 2006
—ETLHF —EEREF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FHET TAET
Non-currents assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB NERE 14 478 68
Intangible assets | EE 15 - =
Available-for-sale investments AHERE 16 - =
Interest in a jointly-controlled entity R ERIEHA R 2 s 18 - =
478 68
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables JiE g BR 3R 19 2,286 2,624
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE ek
other receivables E th i 3k IR 294 29
Cash and bank balances He MIB1TE S 20 818 2453
3,398 5,106
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FESBR R 21 188 =
Other payables and accruals H M e 508 R FEET & A 1,736 292
Bank overdrafts RITHE X 22 20 =
1,944 292
Net current assets RBEEFRE 1,454 4,814
Net assets BEERE 1,932 4,882
CAPITAL AND RESERVE BEXRFHE
Share capital % 7 23 4,650 4,650
Reserves B (2,718) 232
1,932 4,882

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

27 September 2007.

LAM Shu Chung
PRAG A

Director

EFE

RIBZLFAA T LAREETSHAERTET

3

o

LAW Fei Shing
& E
Director

EFE
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At 30 June 2007
RZZEZ+FA=1+H

Balance Sheet

EEEER

2007 2006
—ETLHF —ETRE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET TATT
Non-currents assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e S 14 7 =
Available-for-sale investments Al HERE 16 - 2
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZIKE 17 - -
Investment in a jointly controlled entity ~ R EREHIA 7 2 &E 18 - =
7 L
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE ek
other receivables E th 8 kIR 12 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE W B /8 R R FRIE 17 - =
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTER 20 19 18
31 18
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE{SH B /B R Rl FRIE 17 460 e
Other payables and accruals H M e 508 R FEET & A 391 140
Bank overdraft RITHE X 22 20 =
871 140
Net current liabilities RBEEFE (840) (122)
Net liabilities B8EFE (833) (122)
CAPITAL AND RESERVE BEXRFHE
Share capital % A% 23 4,650 4,650
Reserves B 25 (5,483) (4,772)
(833) (122)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

27 September 2007.

LAM Shu Chung

A 2

Director

EF

KRBT FNAA T LAREETSHAERTET

b

o

LAW Fei Shing

EER

Director

EF

ZRME ER) BRAR —ETLFER
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEEREER

For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZHFRNA=THLEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BRAXARREREA
Exchange
Share Share Capital  fluctuation Accumulated

capital premium reserve reserve losses Total

E =
BEA  ROBRE EARE  RBRE 2 RAER ‘st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FHET FAET TAT FAET
At 1 July 2005 R-ZZETRF+LA—H 4,650 36,850 (595) = (33,541) 7,364
Net loss for the year ~ FREEFH - - - - (2,482) (2,482)
At 30 June 2006 RZZEERFEANA=1H 4,650 36,850 (595) = (36,023) 4,882
Exchange realignment [ 3§ 58 % = - - 45 45
Net loss for the year — FAEEFHE - - - - (2,995) (2,995)
At 30 June 2007 RZZEZ+ERA=TH 4,650 36,850 (595) 45 (39,018) 1,932
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For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZ+FRNA=THLEE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mERERER

2007 2006
—EELHF TETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT T TT
Cash flows from operating activities RETEFEBRERE
Loss before taxation B %54 A 5 18 (2,995) (2,482)
Adjustments for: AT ZIBEEL AR
Amortisation of intangible assets BB B 1,144 1,529
Interest income F B WA 4) (3)
Loss on disposal of property, plant LEWE - BE
and equipment HfE 2 EE 34 832
Depreciation e 12 14
Provision for doubtful debts REREE 2,847 1,054
Reversal of impairment loss on BEEREE
intangible assets REEE (1,144) (1,525)
Operating loss before working capital EEERSHH 2 KEER
changes (106) (585)
Decrease in inventories FERD - 331
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables FEUTBEZR (3 on) R4 (2,478) 1,202
(Increase)/Decrease in prepayments, TENRIE - Ze REMmER
deposits and other receivables FIB (3G m) R (265) SIS
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables  FEfTBEFRIE AN, CRi4) 188 (1,063)
Increase/(Decrease) in other payables HiEELETER
and accruals #n, Cid) 1,444 (1,990)
Net cash used in operating activities EETEHMARSRE (1,217) (1,786)
Cash flows from investing activities RETEHREBRERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BEK
equipment B (454) (33)
Interest received B A 4 3
Net cash used in investing activities REZTEFIARSBE (450) (30)
Net cash from financing activities MEFEAESRSEHE - =
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRREEEYZ
equivalents WA R (1,667) (1,816)
Cash and cash equivalents REDNZRER
at beginning of year HeEEY 2,453 4,269
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes E R% g 5% 12 =
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RER 2B ERBEESEEY 798 2,453
Analysis of balances of cash and HeRE2ZEENZ
cash equivalents R
Cash and bank balances R MIRITHE 818 2,453
Bank overdrafts RITELZ (20) -
798 2,453
ERME R ERAT —T2+a5g 49



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 35 AR MY RE

Group Reorganisation and Basis of
Preparation of Financial Statements

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in Bermuda on 9 September 2002 under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).
Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Group
Reorganisation”) to rationalise the group structure in
connection with the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company
became the ultimate holding company of the companies
now comprising the Group. This was accomplished by
acquiring the entire issued share capital of Cableplus Group
Limited (“Cableplus”), the then holding company of the
Group, in consideration for the allotment and issue of shares
of the Company to the then shareholder of Cableplus on 13
March 2003 and the Company has become the ultimate
holding company of the Group. Further details of the Group
Reorganisation are set out in the Company’s prospectus
dated 31 March 2003 (the “Prospectus”). Pursuant to the
placing arrangement (the “Placing”), details of which are
set out in the Prospectus, 100,000,000 ordinary shares were
issued. The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange on 16 April 2003.

The address of the registered office of the Company is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and its principal place of business is 28/F., Dah
Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company. The principal activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 17.

Going Concern Basis

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity
with the principles applicable to a going concern. The
applicability of these principles is dependent upon continued
availability of adequate finance or attaining profitable
operations in the future in view of recurring losses and
negative cashflows from operations. Going concern basis is
adopted because the directors consider the level of cash on
hand is sufficient for operations.

For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZHFRNA=THLEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

o 755 R AR B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZTLFAA=THLEFE

Application of New And Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,

BRI REET 2ERYH

% % g

RAFE  AEBEEEXEREESHMAE

a number of new standards, amendments and ((BASEEIAE]) BB THETER - 55T
interpretations (“new HKFRSs”), issued by the Hong Kong &Eﬁ%((%ﬁ%\f’%ﬁﬁk#ﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬂ)  HR —ZTTRH
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that #+—-H—H- TREF—H—AB - ZFFERX
are either effective for accounting periods beginning on or F=ZH—HB =% %‘/_\iﬁﬁ—ﬁﬁkiggz_\i

after 1 December 2005, 1 January 2006, 1 March 2006, 1
May 2006 or 1 June 2006. The adoption of the new HKFRSs
had no material effect on how the results and financial
position for the current or prior accounting years have been
prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior year
adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new standards,
amendment or interpretations that have been issued but
are not yet effective. The directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of these new standards, amendment or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results

and the financial position of the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosurest

NA—BRAR RIS HRELR - IRAHME
B HREE B ERSEE R FEREN
BARRZ BRI ZEEATE - HiL
BAMBEFEELAR -

REEYW BIZFRA T RMGERERZH
FIER BRI MR - AARESEHEAZ
FHATER - BT RREBERTEHARE 2 X
ARTERABREATE -

BERHENEIE(MEY) AARE

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures! BRRBREERETH SRIA: RE

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments? BB RS ERE8H ganEe

HK(IFRIC) - Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and &8 (BB BRE B E SR (B
Impairment3 Z2BZE8) - 2E10

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share B8 (ERMBRE BAM KRS LR F25%
Transactions® Z2BZE®) - 2E1L - SEREERHR S

HK(FRIC) - Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements® Bt (BB T BRE RBEEEL S

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November
2006

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

REZEE) - BEI12

T A— B2 &R FEMR AR
ThE—A— B2 &R FEMRAER
NE+T—A—BRz&EFRn 2 FEMRE

A A A
W A A

w
|

4}5{ M

ZTDLF= A ARZ &G Z FERRER
T )\F— H— Bl 2 &R FEHREER

ZRME ER) BRAR —ETLFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 35 AR MY RE

Principal Accounting Policies
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for the financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
using the merger basis of accounting as a result of the Group
Reorganisation. Under this basis, the Company has been
treated as the holding company of its subsidiaries for the
financial years presented rather than from the date of
acquisition of the subsidiaries. Except for the Group
Reorganisation as described above, the results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

In the opinion of the directors, the consolidated financial
statements prepared on the above basis present more fairly
the results and the state of affairs of the Group taken as a
whole. All significant intercompany transactions and
balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZTLFAA=THILEFE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 755 R AR B =

For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZTLFAA=THLEFE

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise, in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced to its recovered amount on individual

basis.

4.

FESHHEEX ®
Ff B 2 7]

MEARNARBEZRAEEBERE LM

REEBRAEL RS T BRI BE - RHE
RAZ BB THERABRFTRERE B - B
FAE 2 FREERERNIRE 2 B FEEER]
YEEaR e

Jointly controlled entity HEZF QA

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the BEPERENLH - Bt NEEHA AT
Group or the Company and other parties undertake an B fth A THETTZE LRSI 2 LIRS 0 M
economic activity which is subject to joint control and none HEFHEEME KBRS EEMETE
of the participating parties has unilateral control over the P o

economic activity.

Joint venture arrangements which involve the establishment FRK &AL ERER B AlZEE

of a separate entity in which each venture has an interest
are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

RHBRHARZEFRQE

The Group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity is included REER LRSI AR 2w iR A S B ES
in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of HEZES ARz BEFEREERNERZESA

the net assets of the jointly controlled entities less any
identified impairment losses determined on an individual
basis. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of
its jointly controlled entity is included in the consolidated
income statement.

The Company’s interest in a jointly controlled entity is stated
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Results of the
jointly controlled entity are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables and available-for-sale investments and the
accounting policy adopted is set out below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from subsidiaries and bank balances) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses. An impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are
reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the
asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject
to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

For the year ended 30 June 2007
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For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZ+FRNA=THLEE

Principal Accounting Policies (continued) 4. FEESFTBE @
Financial instruments (Continued) E@MIAE ®)
Available-for-sale financial assets R ETHEE

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. Any
impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses on available-
for-sale equity investments will not reverse to profit or loss
in subsequent periods. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss. For available-for-sale equity
investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses will not reverse in
subsequent periods.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions

of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
generally classified as other financial liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Other financial liabilities

Trade payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due
to subsidiaries and bank overdrafts are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been

recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
or payable is recognised in profit or loss.

For the year ended 30 June 2007
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For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZ+FRNA=THLEE

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Major costs incurred in restoring
assets to their normal working conditions are charged to
the income statement. Improvements are capitalised and

depreciated over their expected useful lives.

The gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the estimated net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the assets and is recognised as

income or expense in the income statement.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives from the date
on which they become fully operational and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method, at the following rates per annum:

4.
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Computer equipment 20% BN R 20%
Office equipment 20% WAERNE 20%
Leasehold improvements over the lease term HEMERE 1278 %) AP
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Intangible assets
Computer software license rights

The initial cost of acquiring the computer software license
rights is capitalised if it is probable that the future economic
benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the
Group and the cost can be measured reliably.

Computer software license rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Computer software license rights are amortised on
the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives but
not exceeding 4 years.

Impairment loss

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews internal and
external sources of information to determine whether the
carrying amounts of its assets have suffered an impairment
loss or impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated based on the
higher of its net selling price and value in use. Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the smallest group of
assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised

as income immediately.

For the year ended 30 June 2007
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For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZTLFAA=THLEFE

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably and on the
following bases.

Service income is recognised in the period when services

are rendered.

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with time when
goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount.
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s

4.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations in other parts of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC") are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of
equity (the translation reserve). Such translation differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
PRC operation is disposed of.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. The deferred tax liabilities or assets are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is recovered or liability is settled,
based on the tax rates and the tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

No deferred tax is provided for temporary differences arising
from goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in
a transaction other than a business combination and that
affecting neither accounting nor taxable profits, and
investment in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

For the year ended 30 June 2007
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For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZ+FRNA=THLEE

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the leasing company are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental payable under
operating leases are recognised as an expense on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the income statement as an
integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use of
the leased asset.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash equivalents
represent short-term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, net of
bank overdrafts, if any.

4.
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Employee henefits ETEA
Defined contribution plans B E#H 2

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme operated by approved trustees in Hong Kong and
to make contributions for its eligible employees as required
by the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The obligations for
contributions to defined contribution retirement scheme are
recognised as an expense in the income statement as
incurred. The contribution borne by the Group is calculated
at 5% of the salaries and wages (monthly contribution is
limited to 5% of HK$20,000 for each eligible employee).

Equity compensation benefits

The share option scheme allows the Group’s employees to
acquire shares of the Company. No compensation cost or
obligation is recognised when the Group grants options to
employees to acquire shares of the Company. When the
options are exercised, equity is increased by the amount of
the proceeds received.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest
in the Group that gives it significant influence over
the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(c) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group;

(d) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (c);

(e) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (c) or (d); or

(f)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment information
as the primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format for the
purpose of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZ+FRNA=THLEE

Principal Accounting Policies (continued) 4. TESFBE &

Segment reporting (Continued) PERE (&)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities DElE - B ¥E - EEMAEBREER
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as SFBRAUAESMAZYEZIEE o £HIK
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that B DEEERBRETE  BWEREDE -
segment. For example, segment assets may include BEREE - oElE A BENREETD
inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and REBEANDFEZERER ZIERGERE 2
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and —IRMEHAEE - ENEESERND BE2
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances and HEHER HTIARR— SRR S BE TR AT
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the HETEBIER S ©

consolidation process, except to the extent that such intra-

group balances and transactions are between group

enterprises within a single segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during D EBE AR TR AN B A UE TR AR A R R B
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and —BHRER o EE (B REREE) M
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one EEZBKA

period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate RAOEEE FZEEVBEREXEEE - [HEAH
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, corporate and BZER B3 CERREIHEIHBR
financing expenses and minority interests. P ©

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 5. st TREMZETERIR

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management makes various estimates based on past
experiences, expectations of the future and other
information. The key sources of estimation uncertainty that
may significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:

Provision for doubtful debts on receivables

The policy for provision for bad and doubtful debts of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectibility of accounts
and on management’s estimate. In determining whether
provision is required, the Group takes into consideration the
likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only made for
receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is recognised
on the difference between the estimated future cash flow
expected to receive discounted using the original effective
interest rate and the carrying value.
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6. Turnover and Revenue

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group

is principally engaged in the provision of Enterprises Thin

Client Solutions, Customised Thin Client Application

Solutions, Cable Network Thin Client Solutions, and trading

of computer parts.

Turnover and revenue recognised by category are as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2007
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ERAEK K s
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2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT T
Turnover 1
Service income Bz 7% W A 4,100 3,517
Sales of goods EmiHE 12,001 4,176
Royalty income ZHIMA - 344
16,101 8,037
7. Other Income H A Yt A
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Bank interest AT R 4
Exchange gain PE 5 Uk 1
Reversal of impairment loss on BEEEEE
intangible assets BEEE 1,144 1,525
Sundry income HMIFI A - 149
1,149 1,679
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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8. Loss hefore Taxation 8. BREAIEE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ NEBGRFAIEE TR, GEA) T3&E\E%
(crediting): HIER -
2007 2006
—EELF ZETERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FETT
Cost of inventories sold HEFERA 11,632 4,616
Amortisation (note 15) # 55 (fYsE15) 1,144 1,525
Depreciation (note 14) e (sE14) 12 14
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BR AT B &
— provision for the year — RNFEEEE 200 280
— underprovision in last year — FFERETR - 79
Staff costs (including directors’ BTN (BIEES
remuneration — note 10) o — FisE10)
— salaries and allowances — ¥ &oERL 369 1,190
— provident fund contributions — RESHK 10 26
Provision for doubtful debts KRR B 2,847 1,054
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEK
equipment HEEE 34 832
Operating lease charges on premises MEZKEHEER 141 1,105
Reversal of impairment loss on intangible 1 [a] & /2 & & 5 (B & 18
assets (note 15) (BF5E15) (1,144) (1,525)

ZRME ER) BRAR —ETLFER
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9. Taxation 9. HIE

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group
incurred a loss for taxation purposes for the year.

PRC foreign enterprise income tax has not been provided
as the PRC subsidiary incurred a loss for taxation purposes
for the year.

For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZHFRNA=THLEE

HRAEBRAFEERERBEE - WAL EL
BFEMEGHER -

BRI AMERRNAFEREHGER - &
WERTESNE B RSV -

2007 2006

—EETLHF ZETRNF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHT

Loss before tax B #5 BT 5 18 (2,995) (2,482)
Income tax at applicable tax rate REAREGTE 2 EH (524) (434)
Non-deductible expenses TREBR 2 A 726 277
Tax exempt revenue i T8 3h 0 W 2 (201) -
Tax allowance for capital expenditure BEAREY 2 HRERE (58) -
Unrecognised tax losses REER 2 THIBEE 225 127
Tax losses utilised from previous periods  {& /3 i@ 7+ B B 75 T8 B 48 (168) -
Unrecognised temporary differences AERZERER - (121)
Others H Al - 151
Tax expense for the year REEHIAMT - =

The applicable tax rate is the Hong Kong profits tax rate of
17.5% (2006: 17.5%).

KEAZBERBRE AR BNEHRMELTS% (=
TN : 17.5%) o
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For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZ+FRNA=THLEE

10. Directors’ and Senior Executives’
Emoluments

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

o 755 R AR B RE

10. EERSRITHAEME

AEREEHFMRETEHARIAERAT]
Ex EMHRA ([ EMRA) REE R BEEIFH

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and 161 IEH RN T ¢
Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as
follows:
2007 2006
—EELF —EEREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
Executive directors: WITESE
Fees we 60 =
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind % & ~ 2B R EWHZE 80 670
Pension scheme contributions BIREFT B 2 12
142 682
Independent non-executive directors: B IENITES -
Fees we 90 163
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  #& ~ 2B R EWHZ 24 =
114 163
Non-executive directors: ERITESE -
Fees we - -
256 845

ZRME ER) BRAR —ETLFER
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10. Directors’ and Senior Executives’ 10. EERERTHRAEME @
Emoluments (continuea)
2007 —EELHF
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
e 2H Bikg
ok RENFS TEIHEN BEH
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER
Executive directors: HITES :
Lee Hai Chu'! R - - - -
Tony Hoo 2 TR R 2 - - - -
Too Shu Wing 2 PRSI 8 2 60 - - 60
Frederick William De Jacma Jr. 3 Frederick William De Jacma Jr.3 - - - -
Tso Hon Sai Bosco 2 2 - - - -
Yim Kai Pung 2 B HG 2 - - - -
Lam Shu Chung MREHA - 30 1 31
Law Fei Shing ] - 50 1 51
Yau Hoi Kin yidissed - - - -
Kwong Wai Ho Richard BEZ - - - -
Yu Sau Lai REE - - - -
Yeung Sau Han Agnes %A - - - -
60 80 2 142
Independent non-executive directors: B FFHITES
Yu Kam Sing Raymond? RiBH 2 30 - - 30
Lam Nai Hung W 30 8 - 38
Pak Wai Martin? BB 2 30 - - 30
Lum Pak Sum WiHZR - 8 - 8
Kwok Chung Yin HHE - 8 - 8
90 24 - 114
Non-executive director: FHITES :
Cheung Siu Chung Cheever o JK - - - -
150 104 2 256
1 Resigned on 24 July 2007 IRZETtF L AT NBEE
2 Resigned on 5 June 2007 CRZETEFANARARME
3 Resigned on 5 December 2006 SRZETEARFT_ARABEMAT
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10. Directors’ and Senior Executives’ 10. EERERITHAEME &
Emoluments (continued)
2006 —EERE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
Ea =31 Rike
e KEWHG AT LB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAET TAL TAT
Executive directors: WiTEE:
Tony Hoo iR = 550 12 562
Too Shu Wing Py 8 €8 - - - -
Frederick William De Jacma Jr Frederick William De Jacma Jr - - - -
Tang Tsz Hoo Anthony Brx - - - -
Chow Kwok Keung [ B8 - 120 - 120
Lee Hai Chu i = = = -
- 670 12 682
Independent non-executive directors:  BIUFEHITES
Yu Kam Sing Raymond EN) - - - -
Lam Nai Hung T - - - -
Pak Wai Martin =) - - - -
Kwok Ming Fai e 67 = - 67
Chai Chi Keung SR 48 = - 48
Lam Din Kan i) 48 - - 48
163 - - 163
163 670 12 845

EENE R ARAT —TT+545% 0D
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10. Directors’ and Senior Executives’ 10. EERSRITHRAEME @
Emoluments (continued)
Details of the remuneration waived by directors are as BEREZHMFBOT :
follows:
2007 2006
—EBELE —TETREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Executive directors: WITESE
Tony Hoo AR R 190 -
Too Shu Wing b f5if 28 30 =
Independent non-executive directors: B IEMITES :
Pak Wai Martin Sh5 18 -
Lam Nai Hung Mo HE 18 =
Yu Kam Sing Raymond iz 18 -
274 -
The five highest paid employees during the year included FR AARmHEEBRENZ (ZZEZR
four (2006: four) directors, details of whose remuneration FOR)ESF  BEZHFMFBE R EXH
are set out above. Details of the remuneration of the BE-RT—R(CEERNTF: —R)IESEHRS
remaining one (2006: one) non-director, highest paid FREEZEMFRLT :

employee for the year are as follows:

2007 2006

—ETLFE —ETREF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & 28 REWHIZ 95 110
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B R 7 5
102 115
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For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZ+FRNA=THLEE

10.

11.

12.

Directors’ and Senior Executives’
Emoluments (continued)

The number of the highest-paid individual senior executives
whose emoluments fell within the following band is as

follows:

o 755 R AR B RE

10. EERERITHAEME &

MENFUATBEZZSFRRITBRALARK
(N

2007 2006

—BBRLHF —BENTF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT TAETT

Nil = HK$1,000,000 & — 1,000,000/% 7T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors of the Company or any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Loss for the Year and Attributable to
Equity Holders

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders for the
year includes a loss of approximately HK$711,000 (2006:
Profit of HK$660,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

Loss per Share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
consolidated loss attributable to the equity holders for the
year of HK$2,995,000 (2006: HK$2,482,000) and weighted
average number of 465,000,000 (2006: 465,000,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No diluted loss per share has been presented as there were
no potential ordinary shares.

11.

12.

FR - AREREANARREESL AU H
ATHRER—MZAE - (ERRSIKRE MR
HAFRINBAREIR Z B BB AR E -

REEBEERRERFEAR
FARGER

REEBREFEARGEEBREEENAR
Bl Z MR MR 2 B51849711,0008 7T (=
TEZRF - EM660,000 BT e

BREE

BRENBBRIBEAFE 2 RETE ARG
SAEE2,995,0008 T (Z T XEF
2,482,000/870) R FEANDEITE B Z INEF
8 465,000,000 (Z T X F :
465,000,000/%) 5T & o

RELAEEEBE - AE25SREEE

B

ZRME ER) BRAR —ETLFER
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13. Segment Information

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s

For the year ended 30 June 2007
BE_ZZ+FNA=Z1THLFE

13. 2 HEHR

AXFF25 2 D EMEM AR ANEE 2 X5 K
Mol 7 B o TS BRE RS AN B A BB A

business and geographical segments. Business segment
information is chosen as the primary reporting format

because this is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial

BHRRERE  BPESEZHRLA -

reporting.
Business segment E Sk
The Group comprises the following main business segments: NEBZEEXBHBHIE DT -
Trading of Enterprise Thin Customised Thin Cable Network Thin
computer parts Client Solutions Client Application Solutions Client Solutions Group
EREEFH FRAKEEFH
EMENES CEREFHERTR EREXBARZ BRER S|
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEEtE -TERF CZEBEE -TENF CZEBtE -TEF CZERtE -ETTF CZEELE “EENF
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TAn ThR TEn THTL TExn THT Thn THTL TExn Thn
Revenue g
Segment turnover from RENREEZ
external customers PHEER 11,151 = 3,350 6,840 1,600 = - 1,197 16,101 8,037
Segment results PHEE 175 - (1,940) 3,305 (926) = - 116 (2,691) 3421
Unallocated income FARKA 1 154
Unallocated expenses AAERT (305) (6,057)
Loss from operations EEFR (2,995  (2,482)
Share of results of jointly (G 2 A
controlled entities ANGES - -
Finance costs BERA - -
Loss hefore taxation BB AR (2,995) (2,482)
Taxation #E - -
Loss for the year and REEEA
attributable to equity RER
holders EfEE (2,995) (2,482)
Assets BE
Segment assets PHEE 1,212 - 2,359 2,194 - - - 1,234 3,571 3428
Unallocated assets AOREE 305 1,746
Consolidated total assets ~ GABEE 3,876 5174
Liabilities 8%
Segment liabilties PHERE 1,037 - 25 - - - - = 1,062 =
Unallocated labilities FAEBE 882 29
Consolidated total liabilies %A 28 & 1,944 292
Other information Rt EH
Unallocated capital APRER
expenditure 53 454 33
Unallocated depreciation ~ RAEHER
and amortisation B 1,156 1539
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13. Segment Information (continued)
Geographical segment
In presenting information on the basis of geographical

segment, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers. Segment assets and capital

Notes to the Financial Statements

o 755 R AR B RE

13. 2 EER @)

1t 33 2 &P

expenditure are based on the geographical location of the

B BEEE RENE - DR HIRE
FrRE®mESE D - DHMEERBEAFXIRE
EFAEMEED -

assets.
Capital
Revenue from expenditure incurred
external customers Segment assets during the year
REIIREF K zE DEEE RENBEZELRX
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
—EE2LF —TETRF ZEBEELFE —TTRF ZEBEELFE —TERF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FET FHET
Hong Kong a5 11,151 1,068 3,615 2,927 454 33
Taiwan =P - 565 - = - =
USA X - 1,980 - - - -
Singapore hnig - 115 - = - =
PRC H - 3,683 261 2,062 - -
Macau el 4,950 626 - 185 - L
16,101 8,037 3,876 5,174 454 33

ZRME ER) BRAR —ETLFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZHFRNA=THLEE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. 1% - BEKZE

THE GROUP REHE
Computer Office Leasehold Motor
equipment equipment  improvements vehicles Total
ERE BAZRE HENEEHE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIL THIL TAL THR THAT
COST AR
At 1 July 2005 N o el 118 59 1,524 - 1,701
Additions NE 33 - = - 33
Disposal g - - (1,524) - (1,524)
At 30 June 2006 RZEZRE A=1H 151 59 - - 210
Additions AE 7 - - 447 454
Disposal o (107) (61) = = (168)
Exchange realignment BERAE - 2 - - 2
At 30 June 2007 RZZZ2+E/A=1H 51 - - 447 498
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION RihE
At 1 July 2005 W_EER5t+A—H 9 29 692 - 820
Charge for the year FENE 10 4 - = 14
Written back on disposal BERD - - (692) - (692)
At 30 June 2006 RZEEERAZTH 109 33 - - 142
Charge for the year FEME 12 - - - 12
Written back on disposal BERD (101) (34) - - (135)
Exchange realignment R AR - 1 = - 1
At 30 June 2007 RZEZ+EA=1H 20 - - - 20
NET BOOK VALUE REEE
At 30 June 2007 A\ZZS+ERA=TH 31 - - 447 478
At 30 June 2006 RZEZRE A=1H 42 26 - - 68
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continuea)

Notes to the Financial Statements

o 755 R AR B RE

14. W% - BERRXE®

THE COMPANY b NN
Computer
equipment
HK$'000
TFAT
COST AR A
At 1 July 2005 and 30 June 2006 R_ZEZERAF+A—BA _ZTEFNA=1H -
Additions NE 7
At 30 June 2007 R-_ZEZ+FA=+H 7
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION A E
At 1 July 2005 and 30 June 2006 RZZEZRFLA—BERZZEZTFA=1H -
Charge for the year FERE =
At 30 June 2007 RZBEZLFNA=+H -
NET BOOK VALUE EEE?%@
At 30 June 2007 EE+EA=+H 7

At 30 June 2006

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment are
subject to the review of impairment loss at the balance sheet
date. The process of review of impairment loss as set out in
the accounting policy above involves significant estimation
of the assets’ recoverable amounts by the directors, including

the assets’ value in use.

i

L/ E R N
H A BREEE 2 ET o
ER Ltz
EZ B EEE 2 EEENEARTME
EZEREE -

SEZREEESFEREBAE
B EE 2 mE iR
W REERE
BREE

SR EHF

ZRME ER) BRAR —ETLFER
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15. Intangible Assets 15. B &EE
Software
license rights
B S E R
HK$’000
T
COST AR
At 1 July 2005, 30 June 2006 and R-_ZEZERF+A—H —BEEXENA=THEK
30 June 2007 —EEHFARA=FH 6,100
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND 2 BERREER
IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At 1 July 2005 R-_ZEZERF+A—H 6,100
Charge for the year FEHE 1,525
Reversal of impairment during the year B N F [E R (E (1,525)
At 30 June 2006 R-EZRFNA=1H 6,100
Charge for the year FEEH 1,144
Reversal of impairment during the year Bl AN F SR (B (1,144)
At 30 June 2007 R-ZEZE+FA=+H 6,100
NET BOOK VALUE SRR E
At 30 June 2007 R-_ZEZ+FA=+H -
At 30 June 2006 R-_ZEZEXFNA=+H -
16. Available-For-Sale Investments 16. I HERE
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
KEBRAAT
2007 2006
—EELHF —TTRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT T T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMARD - HERAKA - =
Less: Impairment loss B OREEE - =
On 23 May 2006, the Company entire 10% interest in the RZZEZERNFRA-+=8 ' AAFHER
ordinary share capital of Mediacute Technology Limited, a Mediacute Technology Limited (— R & B i
company incorporated in Hong Kong was disposed of. AL 2 AR]) EBE AR 2 2E010% s ©
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17. Interests in Subsidiaries 17. RMIB A Bl 2 &

2007 2006
—ETLHF —ETRE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRD A 1,400 1,400
Less: Impairment loss B R EEE (1,400) (1,400)
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W B /8 R R IE 19,622 20,256
Less: Provision for doubtful debts o REREEE (19,622) (20,256)
Amounts due to subsidiaries P& B /B R RIFRIE (460) -
(460) -
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free HTB AR GEHAERT - RENEBTEERK
and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts HY o 2SRRI N BARIZIE 2 BREEEH

of these amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximate to NEFEESE

their fair values.

EENE @R ARAT — TR 13
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17. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZHFRNA=THLEE

17. AR B AR 2R @

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of

Percentage of

TEMBARZFBOT ¢

incorporation Issued and equity interest held
Name of subsidiary and operations paid up capital by the Company Principal activities
A R BRTR AR RA
HEARER EEME BRRA 2B TEXH
Direct Indirect
H# GiE

Cableplus Group Limited British Virgin 10 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong US$1 each REER

EBELHS 10k EGREE

B 1ET 2 EBR
Tiger Tech (China) Holdings British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares of 100% - Inactive
Limited RERTRES US$1 each REER

100l &R EE

12T EBR
Techidea International British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
Limited EERURES US$1 each REER

IRBREE

Iy w31
Tiger Tech Corporation Hong Kong 5,000 ordinary shares - 100% Provision of Enterprise
Limited B of HK$1 each Thin Client Solutions,
ERVEBRAA 5,000 &R EE Cable Network
BTz ERmR Thin Client Solutions and
Customised Thin Client
Application Solutions
RECEERPH
BRAIR  BH
BREZPHBALR
REHEEP#
ERERABRARZR
Tiger Tech Corporation PRC US$200,000 - 100% Inactive
(Beijing ) Limited H 200,000% 7 AEEB

EEMEQER) BER AR

Techain Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100% Trading of computer
BB HK$1 each parts
IRERAE ENEHES

1Bz LRk
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18. Interests in Jointly Controll

Notes to the Financial Statements

o 755 R AR B RE

ed Entities

18. WSt AR A R 2 #

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
TEH RAF

2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELE —ZERF ZEELE —IERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT FERT TET
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEWRD - AR 195 198 195 195
Less: Impairment loss A OREEE (195) (198) (195) (195)
Shares of net assets DIEEEFRE - = - =
Due from a jointly controlled entity JE W B E A R FRIA 4 41 - =
Less: Provision for doubtful debts o REREE 4 (41) - =

Particulars of jointly controlled entities at the balance sheet

date are as follows:

REE R RFREH QR ZFBOT

Proportion of
nominal value of

Form of issued capital

Name of jointly business  Principal place Place of Nature of held by
controlled entity structure of operation incorporation business  Class of share the Company
KRAREAZ

HEZHARER ARGERKE  TEEESH B 3t 2 EKBHE R 43 R ERTRA
Al-Times International Limited Corporate Hong Kong Hong Kong  Deregistered Ordinary 50%
BRRERNMEERERAF % B &8  BHEHIEM 3 50%
Tiger Tech Mobile Limited Corporate Hong Kong British Virgin Islands Inactive Ordinary 50%
i1 BA RERTES AEEH i 50%

Al-Times International Limited was deregistered in August BRRRREBEBEERARERZEZTEN

2006 without any profit or loss associated with its

deregistration.

AERBEHEM R - BuHEREF T EEE
R A & B8 o

ZRME ER) BRAR —ETLFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZHFRNA=THLEE

19. Trade Receivables 19. EWBR R

AREEYN B ERKGR - BEARE—RET
BE-—EXNEAZERY - BUSRRZIRED

The Group has no specific credit policy. However, the Group
normally allows one to six months repayment period to its

customers. Aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows: Mok
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETREF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TRT FHET
0 - 30 days ZE=1+H - 871
31 - 90 days =+—Zh+H - =
91 - 180 days AT+—Z—8BNATH 177 700
Over 180 days —BAT+HBMNRE 6,010 2,107
6,187 3,678
Less: Provision for doubtful debts W SRR (3,901) (1,054)
2,286 2,624

The carrying value of trade receivables of the Group
amounted to HK$2,286,000 (2006: HK$2,624,000) are
stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Such
allowances are estimated by the directors by reference to a
number of factors such as past default experience, the
relationship with customers and the actual settlement

RER B U AR R 2 PR B 48 %8 /5 2,286,000/8
TT(ZTTREF : 2,624,00087T) © B ARG
AR E z BB EEE IR ER mE(E o 4
BEREFERZERE (WMWBETETE
B HERCHAENEERGERGEERRZE
BRAER) ML A - B 2 RmERE
NFEEE -

subsequent to the balance sheet date. The carrying amounts
of trade receivables approximate to their fair values.
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20. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Notes to the Financial Statements

o 755 R AR B RE

20. RERBREEEY

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
REE AN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEtFE ZETRF CZEETtHE CZITERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERx FHET FET T
Cash and bank balances B e MIRTTHE & 818 2,453 19 18
21. Trade Payables 21. FE{FBRX
The aging of trade payables is ranging form O to 30 days. EERZERATE=1TH -
22. Bank Overdrafts 22. RITEX
Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand. IRTTB X ERERERE °
23. Share Capital 23. |7
2007 2006
—ETLE TN
Number Number
of share HK$’000 of share HK$'000
B EE FTER W15 & 8 FAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FREE0.01BE T Z
HK$0.01 each T e 10,000,000,000 100,000 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHRE
At beginning of year, RES - BREE
at HK$0.01 each 0.018 7T 465,000,000 4,650 465,000,000 4,650
At balance sheet date NEEH 465,000,000 4,650 465,000,000 4,650
ERENE @R ARAT —22rasg (1
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24. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder
of the Company dated 13 March 2003, the share option
scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was approved and

adopted.
Share Option Scheme

The major terms of the Share Option Scheme which will
remain in force for 10 years from 13 March 2003 are
summarised as follows:

(a) The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to selected participants,
which include any person who is a full time or part
time employee or director of the Group, a consultant
or agent of or advisor to the Group, as incentives or

rewards for their contributions to the Group.

(b)  The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue upon completion of the Placing,
the capitalisation issue and the issue of shares which
may fall to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the
Over-allotment Option (details as set out in the
Prospectus). The maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

(c) The total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at date of

grant.

For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZHFRNA=THLEE

24. IR ERTE

BER-_ETZ=F=-A+=-HERAAAIME—
REREB EERBER - BRERTE ([RERHE
T2 B FHbE MR o

fBIRRERT 8

RS ERGRA—TTE=F=At=
RESH+F  Ef20T :

(a) BEREEEGE<SAKENREESHE
E(BEAEEZRIGBREESES
REE 2 R - REHFBAAFERMA
T REBRE - ERREHAEEME
BRNZ Rk -

(b) HITERIRRERE S AR BEME
fil B8 B AT 8IS TR th 2 P BB B ™
AREBRTZRMNBE - TEEBTKE
& BEAMeBTARRATEERERE
BITRMDREBTRMODAZERZ210% (FE
FNAERER) - TEREBBERET S8 &
AN B B a] B 2 ) L 4 B AR ST
FE FHREMmERITE A RITER
BEFATERTZRSRE - TFHEE
TRE#HTRN 230% °

(c) RTTEREEBER 8 MARREME
B &R T AR A ZBRE
(BREETE - EREEREARITERZBR
B)ME FTERITKATRITZRDEE
REFA+—EAARBAERLZ BTG
BBREEADRHTRNZ1% °
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For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZ+FRNA=THLEE

24. Share Option Scheme (continued)

(d)

(e)

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or any of its
associates is required to be approved by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, if
the Company proposes to grant options to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or any independent non-
executive director or their respective associates, in
excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company on the
date of the offer and with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the shares at the date of each
offer) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in a

general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercisable period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors after a certain
vesting period at the discretion of the directors and
ends on a date which is not later than ten years from
the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the share as stated in the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value

of the Company’s shares.

Upto the date of this financial statement, no options have

been granted or agreed to be granted under the Share Option

Scheme since its effective date on 13 March 2003.
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For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZZHFRNA=THLEE

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Company’s Bye-Law and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group Reorganisation as set out
in note 1 to the financial statements, over the nominal value
of the shares of the Company issued in exchange therefor.

The capital reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital of Cableplus
acquired pursuant to the Group Reorganisation as set out
in note 1 to the financial statements, over the nominal value
of the shares of the Company issued in exchange therefor.

Accumulated losses

Included in the figures for the accumulated losses of the
Group is an amount of HK$Nil (2006: HK$3,000), being
the accumulated losses attributable to the jointly controlled
entities.

25. Reserves 25. f#fE
The Company b /N
Share Capital Accumulated

premium reserve losses Total
gy BB RitER E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT FHTT FHT
At 1 July 2005 R=ZZFEZTRF+H—H 36,850 (599) (41,683) (5,432)
Net profit for the year F s A FRE - - 660 660
At 30 June 2006 RZZEZERNFANA=TH 36,850 (599) (41,023) (4,772)
Net loss for the year FNEEFRE - - (711) (711)
At 30 June 2007 RZZEZE+FNA=TH 36,850 (599) (41,734) (5,483)

Share premium %17 5 8

BOEEREBAXIARRRZ ARMAR LA
RE-NN—FRAVERE)REE -

RN

AEBZz EAFHERESEEAE (WP HR
RIEELAAE) WE 2 B AR R 2 EEBL
R A SEREVE BB & RIS M 31T 2 B dn
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RAR 2 EARRBBERIBEER S A (N5
REFFELFTEY) U B 2 CableplusA% 2R 2 EI{EFA H
KA 7] AHECableplusAX {7 M 21T 2 B {7 EE
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For the year ended 30 June 2007

BE-ZTE

26.

27.

28.

TERNA=TRHIEFE

Unrecognised Deferred Taxation

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$20,086,000 (2006: HK$19,624,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in the companies that have been loss-making

for some time.
Commitments
Commitments under operating leases

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under a non cancellable operating

lease, which are payable as follows:

26.

27.

o 755 R AR B RE

R R 2 IR SR IR

REE R BB E & 2 HiIE E18 320,086,000
L (ZZFET/RF 1 19,624,000/87T) + AJ £ [R HY
FR{ER SHER IS EE 2 A B 2 R R FERBLR A
ELHIEQ?I?EEVLEZ%EH?@?’J«/(ﬁ@uu SEA
SEDHEEE —RERZARIELE -

i
REHWERE

REER  AREBERETAHGE 2 £EHOMm
JENS 2 RREHSLREMOT ¢

2007 2006
—sets —=ar
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Within one year —F RN 54 84
Capital expenditure commitments EARL HEE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had no capital REER  AEEREEEZSERMELEEZ

commitments contracted but not provided for net of deposit
paid (2006: Nil).
commitments at the respective balance sheet dates.

The Company had no material

Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the

policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner.

28.

BEARAE (HEENRE) C2EERF 8 -
RRARRNEB/EBHLRBEREAE

o

MEEREEBERBEE
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28. Financial Risk Management Objectives

and Policies (continuea)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparts’ failure to perform their obligations as at
30 June, 2007 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
policies in place for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each balance date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regards, management considers that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on the Group’s bank balances and cash is
limited because the majority of the counterparties are banks
or corporations with high credit standing.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Hong Kong, Macau and other regions
in the People’s Republic of China, with exposure spread

over a number of counterparties and customers.

Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
However, the risk is not significant since the exchange
rate of Hong Kong Dollar with that of Reminbi are
relatively stable.

For the year ended 30 June 2007
HE_ZTLFAA=THILEFE

BEEREERERBE @

R-ZBZLFRNA=1H  AEERTOT R
TEEAMRSEFCHATHEERY
ZE=EERR - Z%ﬁ*/—\ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁljéiﬁ
BEZEEE - AREEERR  AEEER
BRI BB B EERE - E%ﬁt’fﬁ%&ﬁ
MESERIZFF - PARERERENBRAE T8N LAUR 1380 B
B8 - b5 - AEENEEEE BEHTEE
AR SEEZAIKE SRR - AR T e ik E
TRELRBERRE - Bit - EXERA
AEBZEERRBAKNBE -

AEBZRTEFRBASZEERRER -
BARBNHFTRBRTHESEETRZHE
=

AEEZWRE D ZEERRIEETRE
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BE-ZTE

28.

29.

30.

31.

TERNA=TRHIEFE

Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (continued)

(ii) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest risk through
the changes in interest rates relates mainly to the
Group’s variable-rates bank deposits and balances.
The Group’s treasury policy is in place to monitor and
manage its exposure to fluctuation in interest rates.

Post Balance Sheet Events

The Company entered into the Placing Agreement with
Kingston Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”) on 14 June
2007 pursuant to which the Company appointed the Placing
Agent as sole and exclusive placing agent to procure not
fewer than six Placees to subscribe for up to 93,000,000
Warrants, on a fully underwritten basis, at the issue price of
HK$0.08 per Warrant.

The Warrants entitle the Placees to subscribe for the
Subscription Shares at an initial Subscription Price of
HK$0.72 per Subscription Share for a period of 18 months
commencing from the date of issue of the Warrants. Each
Warrant carries the right to subscribe for one Subscription
Share. The Subscription Shares will be issued under the
General Mandate. The Placing Agreement and Share
Subscription were completed on 11 July 2007 and 16 July
2007 respectively.

Details of these are disclosed in announcement of the
Company dated 14 June 2007.

Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to

conform with the current year’s presentation.
Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 27 September 2007.

29.

30.

31.
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Summary of Financial Information

MBERME

The following is a summary of the combined results and combined
assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the five years ended

HE—

Year ended 30 June 2007

ZEHEFERNA=TRHIEFE

UTBREBE TN XHMEMSEERRAEE BE—
ERLERNAZTHERAFRF2AHEERAH

30 June 2007 prepared on the basis set out in the notes below: BEBEME
Combined Results XS
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
—2FE=F ZTTWF ZTTHRFE ZTTF ZEELHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T FHE T FHE T FET
(restated)
(&%)
Turnover -] 12,147 29,600 7,659 8,037 16,101
Loss before taxation B %4 Al 5 18 (13,674) (20,949) (7,167) (2,482) (2,995)
Taxation T8 (49) = = = -
Loss attributable to fi% 5 ek B 18
shareholders (13,723) (20,949) (7,167) (2,482) (2,995)
Basic loss per share FREREE
(HK cents) (&AL (4.28) (5.03) (1.54) (0.53) (0.64)
Diluted loss per share FlEEER
(HK cents) (&AL N/AZ i3 F N/AT~ 33 FB N/AZ 35 B N/AZ 35 B N/ATE H
Combined Assets and Liabilities EeHEEREE
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
—TE=F —ZTNF —TTRF —TTRF ZEBELHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHE T FHE T FET
(restated)
(F751)
Non-current assets EMBEE 7,272 2,201 881 68 478
Current assets BN & EE 21,183 14,229 9,828 5,106 3,398
Current liabilities mENAE 3,875 1,899 3,345 292 1,944
Non-current liabilities EmBaE = = - -
Notes: i

i The results for each of the two years ended 30 June 2007 have 1.
been extracted from consolidated income statement as set out on

page 41 of the financial statements.

2 The financial summary of the Group, which is presented for 2.
information only, has been prepared on the basis that the structure
and business activities of the Group immediately after the

I E 2 B

completion of the Group Reorganisation had been in existence
throughout the three years ended 30 June 2003.

BE_ZTHFNA=TALEMEFEXEE RS
BEAAZHMBRRABZEABER -
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